
Third United Nations Conference on the Law of the Sea 
 

1973-1982 
Concluded at Montego Bay, Jamaica on 10 December 1982 

 
 

Document:- 
A/CONF.62/C.3/SR.19

 
 

19th meeting of the Third Committee 
 

Extract from the Official Records of the Third United Nations Conference on the Law of  
the Sea, Volume IV (Summary Records, Plenary, General Committee, First, Second and Third 

Committees, as well as Documents of the Conference, Third Session) 
 

 

 

 

 

Copyright © United Nations 
2009 



82 Third Session - Third Committee

19th meeting
Wednesday, 26 March 1975, at 10.55 a.m.

Chairman: Mr. A. YANKOV (Bulgaria).

Tribute to the memory of King Faisal of Saudi Arabia

1. The CHAIRMAN, on behalf of the Committee, ex-
pressed condolences to the delegation of Saudi Arabia on
the death of King Faisal. He announced that the President
of the Conference proposed to call a special plenary
meeting on 27 March to pay tribute to the memory of King
Faisal.

On the proposal of the Chairman, the representatives
observed a minute of silence in tribute to the memory of
King Faisal

2. Mr. HAJJAR (Saudi Arabia) thanked the Chairman and
the Committee for the condolences expressed to his
delegation on the tragic death of King Faisal.

Preservation of the marine environment
(Agenda item 12J

3. Sir Roger JACKLING (United Kingdom) introducing
the draft articles on the prevention, reduction and control of
marine pollution (A/CONF.62/C.3/L.24) on behalf of the

sponsors, said that one of his delegation's main objectives at
the Conference was to secure a commitment to prevent and
control pollution. The United Kingdom was particularly
vulnerable since its coastline was exposed to the busiest
shipping lane in the world. It had taken the initiative in the
Inter-Governmental Maritime Consultative Organization
(IMCO) in formulating an 18-point programme to combat
the dangers of accidental pollution, after the Torrey
Canyon disaster in 1967 had made clear what was required
with regard to tanker construction and operation in order
to prevent it.

4. The United Kingdom was also exposed to intentional
pollution from vessels; it had taken a leading part in
securing the amendment or adoption of a number of
conventions relating to that form of pollution. As a coastal
State, the United Kingdom recognized that the threat was
essentially international and that it could be effectively
controlled only by the imposition through international
channels of a uniform set of regulations which set high
safety standards. Such a course would also ensure co-
operation by shipowners because they would have equality
of treatment.



19th meeting - 26 March 1975 83

5. Indeed, the fact that accidents and intentional spillages
had declined in recent years in spite of increased traffic
showed that co-operation between Governments and with
shipowners was effective and that international regulations
were being better observed.

6. With regard to the effective enforcement of interna-
tional regulations, his delegation had submitted at the
second session proposals which had stressed the primary
responsibility of the flag State for ensuring the safety of its
ships. It had, however, recognized that in the matter of
vessel-source pollution many countries wished to introduce
greater enforcement powers for States other than the flag
State. In the light of those views and of the fact that many
ships passing the coast of the United Kingdom did not call
at its ports, his delegation had reached the conclusion that
additional enforcement powers would be useful, provided
there were sufficient safeguards against abuse.

7. In practice, enforement took the form of surveying the
ship and issuing it with an international certificate which
was normally accepted in ports of countries parties to the
relevant convention. The convention, however, also pro-
vided for inspection in ports of call in cases where there
were grounds for suspecting that a ship or its equipment did
not correspond with its certificate. Moreover, there were
cases of violations at sea where the enforcement of
discharge regulations was particularly difficult. The United
Kingdom actively endeavoured to prosecute both national
and foreign ships committing violations in its territorial
waters when they entered United Kingdom ports; it also
pursued cases with foreign Governments. Nevertheless, the
United Kingdom authorities had found it difficult to obtain
sufficient evidence for successful prosecutions, either at
home or abroad. Over the previous five years, it had been
possible to link with particular vessels 203 of the 900
spillages occurring off United Kingdom coasts, but there
had been only 18 successful prosecutions.

8. It was therefore clear that the main burden of enforce-
ment action should occur before a ship committed a
violation of pollution provisions, and for that reason his
delegation had started from the premise that the flag State
was initially responsible for its own ships.

9. That position was made clear in article 3 of the draft
articles. In his country's experience, there was a good deal
of co-operation from flag States in the case of ships which
had violated regulations inside or outside territorial waters.
Vessels did, however, escape prosecution because they
passed the coast of the United Kingdom without calling at
its ports. In such instances, there would obviously be an
advantage in establishing a system of obligations on other
States at whose ports such vessels subsequently called.
Paragraphs 9-19 of draft articles therefore proposed a
system of port State inspection and enforcement, and the
right of a coastal State to require information from a
passing vessel. The coastal State would then have the option
of asking, at its choice, either the flag State or the port
State to take action. Draft article 3 imposed an obligation
on both to comply with the request from the coastal State.

10. Although such changes in jurisdiction would not be a
panacea, he was confident that the system of port State
jurisdiction would be of value in the war against pollution
by complementing better control by the flag State-
provided for in draft article 3, paragraphs 6-8.

11. As he had already indicated, one of the problems of
dealing with alleged violations was the difficulty of securing
evidence of the type required by the courts. Draft article 3,

paragraph 12 therefore proposed that such evidence should
be collected at the next port of call, either at the initiative
of the port State itself or at the request of a coastal State.
Furthermore, in order to assist a coastal State in obtaining
the relevant information on which to base such requests,
draft article 3, paragraphs 20-22 established its right to
require information from any vessel; paragraph 21 imposed
an obligation on the flag State to ensure that its ships
supplied such information. Some countries were attracted
by the idea of empowering coastal States to inspect and
even arrest ships at sea. However, there were practical
difficulties in stopping and boarding large ships in a busy
sea lane, and any evidence so obtained would be equally
available at the next port of call.

12. Draft article 3 built up a system of enforcement from
the initial obligation of the flag State, through port State
inspection and enforcement, to the right of the coastal
State to require information from passing ships.
Throughout, obligations and rights had been matched by
suitable safeguards. It would be noted that the article
showed a distinct shift in the United Kingdom position,
partly as a result of reassessment of its requirements as
coastal State and partly in order to meet the position of
many other countries.

13. The draft articles in document A/CONF.62/C.3/L.24
also covered sources of marine pollution other than
vessel-source pollution, which presented fewer problems
because they were static and susceptible to national control
and to enforcement in conjunction with other States. There
were also articles containing appropriate safeguards and
provisions for the settlement of disputes.

14. Mr. BENTEIN (Belgium) said that his delegation had
become a sponsor of the proposals in document A/
CONF.62/C.3/L.24 for a number of reasons. First, the draft
articles strengthened current international regulations, in-
cluding those of the 1973 International Convention for the
Prevention of Pollution from Ships, which had not yet
entered into force. As a country interested in exploiting the
living resources of the seas and having a coastline exposed
to heavy shipping traffic, Belgium warmly supported such
provisions. At the same time, his country processed
products for re-export amd was a transit country; it was
accordingly concerned to ensure the unfettered and harmo-
nious development of shipping. It was therefore particularly
interested in the proposed system for dealing with vessel-
source pollution.

15. Draft article 3, while giving port States powers of
inspection and prosecution in cases of alleged violations and
coastal States extensive rights to require information,
nevertheless acknowledged that the primary responsibility
rested with the flag State. It was necessary to safeguard that
principle in order to preserve the existing legal status of
ocean-going vessels on the high seas, which was in the
interests of all States, including coastal States. Moreover,
the principle was balanced by strong guarantees of the
rights of any injured port State.

16. At the same time, draft article 3 took account of the
need not to impede maritime traffic. The principle of the
combined powers of the port and the flag States ensured
that the normal movements of ships would be maintained,
since they would not be liable to arrest off the coasts of
other States or to indefinite detention or the risk of being
escorted to unsuitable ports.

17. For practical reasons, his delegation was not in favour
of granting to coastal States more extensive powers than



84 Third Session - Third Committee

those proposed in the draft articles. On the other hand, it
recognized that a State might have a special interest in
preserving a particularly vulnerable area of the sea. That
position was covered in draft article 3, paragraphs 2 and 3,
which provided for the establishment of special areas under
international control.

18. Finally, the draft articles would establish a watertight
system provided all States acceded to the proposed general
convention on the law of the sea and the special conven-
tions on the preservation of the marine environment. It
would promote international co-operation and would be
unacceptable only to those who sought to evade their
international obligations. In particular, the provisions relat-
ing to vessel-source pollution offered the advantages pre-
sented by a dual system of enforcement—by the coastal
State and the flag State-without its concomitant disadvan-
tages. At first sight, the system might appear complex, but
closer study would show it to be both clear and logical.

19. Mr. RIPHAGEN (Netherlands) said that the Nether-
lands, one of the sponsors of the draft articles, was a coastal
State with a number of large ports which handled a high
volume of traffic, and was particularly vulnerable to
vessel-source pollution. He therefore considered it essential
to have an effective system for combating pollution and
ensuring enforcement of the international regulations. The
draft articles provided such a system and were a useful basis
for discussion.

20. Mr. BUHL (Denmark) said that in sponsoring the draft
articles his delegation had been concerned to provide a
realistic framework for drawing up internationally-agreed
regulations to control marine pollution.

21. Referring to draft articles 1, 2 and 4, concerning
pollution from land-based sources, from the exploration
and exploitation of the sea-bed, and from dumping, he
urged the need for a global approach in reaching agreements
on those subjects. Regional measures which complied with
internationally recognized guidelines should also be devised,
in view of the long-range effects of pollution on marine
ecology, and countries should harmonize their policies to
ensure that the hazards were not simply transferred from
one area to another.

22. Draft article 3 likewise emphasized the need for a
global approach in order to ensure that the marine
environment was preserved without detriment to interna-
tional navigation. Denmark, which stood at the crossroads
of major shipping lines, was keenly aware of the need to
protect its coastline against vessel-source pollution, and that
could be achieved only by strict regulations which were
respected by all. Jurisdiction over vessels should, in his
delegation's view, rest primarily with the flag State whose
duty and right it was to ensure the effective enforcement of
regulations, as provided for in draft article 3, paragraphs
6-8, but that jurisdiction should be supplemented by the
port State's right of inspection and enforcement, as
provided in paragraphs 9-19.

23. His delegation attached particular importance to the
adoption of special mandatory methods, such as those
contemplated in draft article 3, paragraphs 2-4, to prevent
pollution by ships of especially vulnerable areas, such as the
waters of the Arctic; the need for such methods was
recognized in the 1973 International Convention for the
Prevention of Pollution from Ships and by the 1974
Convention on the Protection of the Marine Environment
of the Baltic Sea Area. Governments responsible for such
areas should be able to invoke the procedures laid down in

paragraphs 2-4 to prevent deterioration of the marine
environment.

24. Mr. HAKAPAA (Finland) welcomed the draft articles,
which proposed a well-balanced solution to many of the
problems of marine pollution and, in defining the powers of
flag, port and coastal States regarding vessel-source pollu-
tion, took account both of the need to protect the marine
environment of coastal States and of the interests of
navigation. A useful basic criterion in defining the enforce-
ment powers of the port State and the right of the coastal
State to require information would be the damage caused
or likely to be caused to coastal interests.

25. Some of the draft articles, however, required elabora-
tion. For instance, the convention should stipulate that the
coastal State retained its powers of regulation and enforce-
ment within its territorial waters. Several countries, in-
cluding his own, had made rules for protecting the marine
environment which his delegation saw no reason to rescind.
It was nevertheless prepared to support a solution which
would make the design, construction, manning or equip-
ment of ships subject to international regulation.

26. On the question of the provisions for special areas, the
coastal State should, under the control of the competent
international organization, have certain powers regarding
the regulation of vessel-source pollution.

27. Lastly, there was an urgent need for agreement on the
basic principles of responsibility and liability for the
activities of both States themselves and persons within their
jurisdiction. In the event of violations, the State responsible
should be required to cease the wrongful act and to
compensate for the damage caused.

28. Mr. KATEKA (United Republic of Tanzania) observed
that, under article 1 of the draft articles, States would be
obliged to implement international standards with regard to
land-based sources of marine pollution which would place a
disproportionately heavy burden on developing countries.
In order to avoid such an anomaly, the developing
countries, pursuant to the Stockholm Declaration on the
Human Environment,1 had insisted in the sea-bed Com-
mittee and at the second session of the Conference that a
provision requiring economic factors to be taken into
account should be included in any new convention con-
cerning marine pollution control. Developing countries
would do their utmost to control land-based sources of
marine pollution, but they believed that such control could
best be effected by national regulations which took due
account of international standards.

29. The draft articles favoured flag-State jurisdiction at
the expense of coastal and other third States, although
experience had shown that such jurisdiction was inef-
fectual. Moreover, the relevant articles contained so many
conditions and exceptions that they deprived the port State
of effective enforcement powers. Furthermore, draft arti-
cle 3 required States to act through "the competent
international organization". It was the view of his delega-
tion that competence with regard to pollution might not be
limited to a single organization and that the issue of
competence should not be foreclosed by making reference
to one agency only. In any event, his delegation preferred
the term "international co-operation", a neutral formula-
tion which did not determine competence.

1 Report of the United Nations Conference on the Human
Environment (United Nations publication,"Sales No. E.73.II.A.14),
chap. I.



19th meeting - 26 March 1975 85

30. There was also the question of whether residual
powers should be allocated to the coastal or the flag State;
draft article 3, paragraph 5 appeared to favour the flag
State. Even in "special areas" (para. 2) States would act
through the competent international organization, which
meant that residual powers were not given to the State
affected but to the international community. His delegation
doubted the effectiveness of such procedures, bearing in
mind that international regulations tended to be general in
scope and would be unlikely to cater for special climatic
conditions. Moreover, the countries concerned might not be
prepared to entrust responsibility for their vulnerable
environment to third parties.

31. In addition to residual powers, the coastal State
should have enforcement powers. Coastal States could not
mortgage their marine environment to flag States. The
representative of the United Kingdom had stated that
coastal States did not have the means of detecting
violations. While that might be true in existing circum-
stances, it would not necessarily apply throughout the
duration of the convention. Coastal State enforcement
powers would act as a deterrent to potential culprits in the
area under their jurisdiction. Since it was in the interests of
developing countries to ensure the unhampered flow of
trade, such powers would not be used to interfere with
international navigation.

32. Draft article 6, paragraph 5 provided that the enforce-
ment powers would not apply to vessels in non-commercial
government service. By implication, therefore, government-
owned vessels used for commercial purposes would be
subject to those provisions. The whole issue of ownership
needed to be reviewed thoroughly, in view of the fact that
the shipping fleets of many developing countries were
government-owned, irrespective of the purpose for which
they were used, and should not be subjected to foreign
jurisdiction. The rationale of sovereign immunity, after all,
was to prevent sovereign power from being subjected to the
jurisdiction of another. Since the issue under consideration
was the prevention of pollution and not the protection of
ships, the draft articles should deal with the status rather
than the nature of the vessels in question.

33. Mr. JAIN (India) said that, on the subject of marine
pollution, his delegation maintained the position it had
taken in document A/CONF.62/C.3/L.6,2 submitted at
Caracas. It felt strongly that the interests of coastal States
had not received due consideration in the draft articles in
document A/CONF.62/C.3/L.24. He had noted that
Greece, a sponsor of the draft articles, had apparently
reverted to the idea of port State jurisdiction, notwith-
standing the proposal it had submitted in Caracas in
document A/CONF.62/C.3/L.4.2 His delegation's view that
primary jurisdiction should rest with the coastal State was
prompted by the fact that India, with a long coastline and
substantial resources to protect from pollution, had
embarked upon a programme to build up its merchant fleet.
It advocated a balanced approach which would take
account not only of the requirements of navigation but also
of the need to protect coastal resources against pollution.

34. Articles 1 and 2 in document A/CONF.62/C.3/L.24
envisaged both national and international regulations. The
document did not, however, specify the international
regulations with which a State would have to comply. He
therefore suggested that a provision might be added to the

2 official Records of the Third United Nations Conference on the
Law of the Sea, voL III (United Nations publications, Sales
No. E.75.V.5).

effect that the regulations of a coastal State should take
account of the international regulations drawn up by a
competent international organization.

35. Draft Article 3, paragraphs 2 and 3 were designed to
protect the interests of coastal States in cases where there
were no internationally agreed regulations. It seemed to
him, however, that the mere availability of regulations
without the power to enforce them would be of little
effect. Similarly, the approach whereby regulations would
be applied only if first approved by an international
organization was of doubtful value. It was essential to have
set standards for coastal areas if the environment was to be
protected, and the draft articles did not meet that
requirement.

36. While agreeing in principle with the provisions for
port-State enforcement (article 3, paras. 11-19), he
considered that some amendments were needed. For
example, paragraph 14 (a) stipulated that a period of six
months should elapse before proceedings for violation of
regulations were taken by a port State. There might,
however, be instances when, from the point of view of
evidence, it would not be advisable to wait so long.

37. Moreover, the penalties for violation should not be
confined to those mentioned in paragraphs 17 and 18, since
in some cases a more severe penalty, such as seizure of a
vessel, might be appropriate. The cases in which that might
be so could be defined subsequently.

38. He failed to see what purpose would be served by the
provisions on a coastal State's right to require information
(paras. 20-22) if it lacked the power to inspect or take
enforcement action itself. The sponsors of the draft articles
might consider a provision whereby a coastal State, in the
event of violation of the regulations, could request a port
State to arrest the ship and send it back to the coastal
State, using something in the nature of extradition proceed-
ings for the purpose. In advocating that course, he had in
mind only serious violations, when the interests of the
coastal State should override the requirements of naviga-
tion.

39. In draft article 4, on dumping, he suggested that the
words "control and regulate" should be added after the
word "authorize" in paragraph 3.

40. Lastly, with regard to the United Kingdom representa-
tive's reference to steps taken to deal with the problem of
pollution in earlier conventions, he pointed out that
article 4, paragraph 2 of the 1973 International Convention
for the Prevention of Pollution from Ships empowered
coastal States to initiate proceedings in the event of
violation of regulations. The draft articles seemed to
constitute a movement away from that position.

41. M?. KAWAGUCHI (Japan) said that his delegation
found document A/CONF.62/C.3/L.24 a very comprehen-
sive and constructive proposal designed to establish an
effective system for preserving the marine environment
without unduly interfering with the legitimate uses of the
ocean, including international maritime traffic.

42. Effective international co-operation in the prevention
of vessel-source pollution required the application of
uniform standards established by the competent inter-
national organization. His delegation therefore attached
great importance to draft article 3, paragraphs 1 and 4 and
to paragraph 6 and subsequent paragraphs of that article,
which outlined the respective competences of flag States,



86 Third Session - Third Committee

port States and coastal States in the event of a violation of
the international regulations.

43. In conclusion, he pointed out that the document
would form a useful basis for discussion.

44. Mr. TRESSELT (Norway) said that document
A/CONF.62/C.3/L.24 made a useful contribution to the
work of the Committee. He welcomed the fact that the
draft articles were sponsored by a number of maritime
powers.

45. The draft articles provided practical and generally
satisfactory solutions for certain issues. However, it would
be necessary to deal with other issues in order to produce
the comprehensive and balanced provisions necessary to
safeguard the common interests of States with regard to the
protection of the marine environment and the maintenance
of a rational system of international maritime transport.

46. The draft articles submitted by the USSR in document
A/CONF.62/C.3/L.25 were a useful complement to the
nine-Power draft articles in some respects; nevertheless, a
still broader field must be covered in order to achieve a
comprehensive and balanced approach.

47. Mr. MOORE (United States of America) welcomed the
draft articles in document A/CONF.62/C.3/L.24, in which
careful attention was paid to certain specific problems, and
which would be very useful in the final phase of the
Committee's work.

48. It was particularly important to have effective uniform
international standards for protection against vessel-source
pollution in the economic zone so as to protect the marine
environment and vital trade, and to enable all nations
affected to have a voice in the decision-making process.
There seemed to be general agreement on the need to
improve the current system of enforcement of international
standards for vessel-source pollution, and on the inade-
quacy of leaving enforcement to the flag State alone. In his
delegation's view, document A/CONF.62/C.3/L.24 placed
too many restrictions on the enforcement of international
rules by port States. A truly effective system of port State
enforcement should be given an important place in the
current negotiations.

49. In conclusion, he pointed out that draft article 4
contained no definition of dumping; he assumed that it
meant dumping as defined in the 1972 Convention on the
Prevention of Marine Pollution by Dumping of Wastes and
Other Matter.

50. Mr. GUEYE (Senegal) expressed the view that draft
article 1, paragraph 1 did not give the coastal State sufficient
power to take effective action against the source of
pollution in question, since international regulations could
not provide for all cases which might arise in countries
which differed so widely and had such varied levels of
development.

51. With reference to draft articles, paragraph 2, the
volume of traffic and tonnage should be sufficient, together
with other evidence, for the establishment of special areas.

52. The developing countries for the most part lacked the
facilities necessary for waste disposal, and the requirement
that there should be plans for establishing such facilities
before a particular area was recognized as a special area was
not acceptable to his delegation.

53. The draft article made no reference to the size of the
area in which the coastal State should take action to
protect the marine environment adjacent to its coasts. That
area should include at least the exclusive economic zone to
be defined by the forthcoming convention, since protection
of the marine environment was closely connected with the
living resources in that zone.

54. The current situation and the difficulties encountered
in combating pollution arose from the fact that the coastal
State could not penalize the vessels which caused pollution,
and which felt protected by the flag State. His delegation
considered that the coastal States had the primary responsi-
bility for enacting and enforcing legislation, in conformity
with international law, and even for strengthening it if
necessary, in an area such as the exclusive economic zone,
which contained resources of major importance to the
development process of the coastal developing countries.

55. Mr. LEGAULT (Canada) said that he was in general
agreement with some elements of the approach adopted by
the sponsors of document A/CONF.62/C.3/L.24. Vessel-
source pollution controls should indeed be based on
internationally agreed rules and standards. However, it was
vital for coastal States to retain the right of environmental
self-protection and to ensure effective enforcement of
agreed standards, with participation in such enforcement by
coastal States, port States and flag States. His delegation
did not believe that standard-setting powers in the coastal
State would lead to a plethora of conflicting regulations,
provided the relevant provisions contained appropriate
safeguards. His country was as anxious to preserve the
marine environment as it was to maintain freedom for
international shipping.

56. It was not clear, however, whether the draft articles
were intended to complement other articles: as they stood,
they seemed to be intended more for the protection of
shipping than for the preservation of the marine environ-
ment. For example, no reference was made in the draft
articles to the very important general obligation of States to
preserve the marine environment. Furthermore, they made
no mention of the economic zone or of the jurisdiction,
rights and obligations of coastal States with regard to
preservation of the environment in the economic zone. His
delegation regretted the rejection by the sponsors of the
economic zone or patrimonial sea approach, which was the
very foundation for general agreement on all aspects of the
future convention.

57. Article 1, which related to land-based sources, was
weaker than the equivalent provisions negotiated at earlier
conferences, and did not reflect the Stockholm principles
for assessment and control of pollution3 and the concerns
of the developing countries. Draft article 2, on sea-bed
exploration and exploitation, appeared at first sight to be
generally acceptable and useful.

58. With regard to vessel-source pollution, it was regret-
table that no provision had been made in the draft articles
for the adoption by the coastal State of anti-pollution
standards even in its territorial sea, or even in accordance
with internationally agreed rules. He agreed with the
Finnish delegation that the coastal State should retain full
powers within its territorial sea to prevent pollution, and
should also have certain rights and obligations in its
economic zone. He believed that special provision should be
made for pollution control in critically vulnerable areas.

3 See Report of the United Nations Conference on the Human
Environment (United Nations publication, Sales No. E.73.II.A.14),
annex III.



19th meeting - 26 March 1975 87

59. With regard to flag State enforcement, the articles
needed to be strengthened and expanded. As to port State
inspection, the articles offered no new provisions; they
might even limit the port State's power to inspect vessels.
With regard to port-State enforcement, on the other hand,
his delegation's preliminary view was that the draft articles
contained many new and constructive elements; they also
indicated a welcome shift in the position of some of the
sponsors.

60. With regard to the coastal State's right to require
information, he pointed out that the rights ostensibly
granted under the provisions in question were already
embodied in the 1973 International Convention for the
Prevention of Pollution from Ships. That Convention
provided for coastal State enforcement, whereas the new
draft articles made no allowance for the enforcement of
international standards by the coastal State even in its
territorial sea, much less in its economic zone.

61. With regard to article 4, on dumping, the provisions
were generally satisfactory, except that paragraph 1 might
'need to be clarified.

62. Article 5, concerning responsibility and liability,
covered private interests; provisions should, however, also
be made for State liability.

63. Article 7, on the settlement of disputes, was a very
general provision: a special procedure might be necessary in
the case of vessel-source pollution.

64. Mr. TIKHONOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics)
said that each State's contribution to the prevention of
pollution of the marine environment depended on the
significance it attached to the protection of the environ-
ment within its territory and the responsibility for preven-
tion of pollution it imposed on its nationals, ships and
organizations operating outside its territory.

65. The legislation of the Soviet Union contained a body
of regulations designed to protect the marine environment
from pollution. That legislation provided effective measures
to prevent pollution in Soviet internal waters and its
territorial sea by Soviet and foreign ships and the pollution
of the high seas by Soviet ships. For example, it was a
criminal offence, punishable by a fine of up to 20,000
roubles, for Soviet ships to discharge proscribed harmful
substances in the high seas.

66. Moreover, his Government was always prepared to
co-operate on the bilateral, regional and multilateral levels
to protect the marine environment. It was a party to the
1954 International Convention for the Prevention of
Pollution of the Sea by Oil and was already voluntarily
applying the 1969 amendments to that Convention to its
ships without waiting for their entry into force. It was a
signatory to the 1972 London Convention on the Preven-
tion of Marine Pollution by Dumping of Wastes and Other
Matter and the 1973 International Convention for the
Prevention of Pollution from Ships. Many important
provisions of the last-mentioned Convention concerning the
construction of purifying equipment and ship design were
already being applied hi Soviet ports and on Soviet ships. In
1974 the Soviet Union had acceded to the 1969 Inter-
national Convention relating to Intervention on the High Seas
in Cases of Oil Pollution Casualties and had signed the
1973 Protocol extending that Convention to other harmful
substances. One of the first regional agreements—the 1974
Convention on the Protection of the Marine Environment
of the Baltic Sea Area—had been drafted and adopted with
the participation of the USSR.

67. At the same time his Government was well aware that
there was still considerable scope for international co-opera-
tion in protecting the marine environment and that the
international regulations on the problem could be more
universal and effective if they covered a wider range of
sources of pollution, many of which were more dangerous
than shipping. The Conference could do much to remedy
that situation in the interests of all mankind.

68. His delegation supported the draft articles on the
prevention, reduction and control of marine pollution
submitted by nine delegations, including three representing
socialist countries (A/CONF.62/C.3/L.24). The sponsors

_had adopted the right approach towards reconciling
"national and international rules and had correctly evalu-
ated various sources of pollution from the international
point of view.

69. Much importance was attached in those draft articles
to national rules for the prevention of land-based pollution
and pollution arising from exploration and exploitation of
the sea-bed. That was essential because of the inadequacy
of current international rules and because, as coastal States
bore the main responsibility for stopping such pollution,
they should be empowered to establish additional and more
stringent rules to prevent it, including a total prohibition
of such activities.

70. In principle the same kind of approach had been taken
in the draft articles to the dumping of waste and other
matter in areas adjacent to coasts. A large measure of
agreement had been achieved on article 4, which conferred
on the coastal State the exclusive right to allow or prohibit
dumping in established zones and to promulgate laws and
rules which it would enforce.

71. Clearly, a somewhat different approach had to be
adopted to preventing pollution from ships. In that respect
the draft articles correctly emphasized the importance of
international rules (article 3, paras. 1-4). Serious difficulties
for shipping might arise if each country were allowed to
promulgate its own rules on the subject. Discrepancies
would inevitably arise between the rules of different States,
and in time ships might have to face not a unified
international code but separate provisions applicable in
different parts of the world.

72. Enforcement provisions were prominent in the nine-
Power proposal. His delegation would prefer the Con-
ference to adopt the principle of the jurisdiction of the flag
State in the high seas. However, in order to reach
agreement, it. was prepared to accept the proposal in the
draft articles for an amplification of that principle by a
limited grant of competence to the coastal State over any
foreign ship coming into its ports. An essential condition
should be the establishment of safeguards against the abuse
of power by the port State and the avoidance of unneces-
sary international complications. In particular the articles
should include the flag State's primary right to take
proceedings within a fixed period against any persons in
breach of the rules; the imposition of only monetary fines-
for such breaches; the immediate release of the ship on
paying a deposit or giving some other guarantee for
payment of the fine; and full compensation for any damage
caused by unjustified measures taken against the ship. In
that connexion, his delegation had some doubts about
article 3, paragraphs 11 and 12 of which enabled the port
State to take proceedings against a foreign ship even when
it had committed a breach of international rules many
hundreds of miles from the coast of any State.



88 Third Session - Third Committee

73. The nine-Power draft did not touch on the important
problem of whether or not coastal States could establish in
their territorial sea national rules concerning the construc-
tion, equipment, and manning of foreign ships. In practice,
technical innovations were often applied only to newly-
built ships. The introduction of new rules called for special
care, and at the national level rules for the prevention of
pollution should not be made applicable to foreign ships.
His delegation's views on that point were reflected in
article 2 of its additional draft articles on prevention of
pollution of the marine environment (A/CONF.62/
C.3/L.25).

74. The problem of combating pollution in international
straits situated within the territorial sea was a complicated
one. The only way to deal with it was to include in the
future convention provisions, such as those in article 3 of
his delegation's draft articles, prohibiting in straits any
discharge from ships of harmful or toxic substances either
on board or being transported, as well as mixtures
containing such substances. Such a rule would complicate
the position of ships passing through straits but was
essential in order to reach agreement concerning the regime
of straits.

75. An important element in the Soviet draft articles was
the rule in article 4 about the right of intervention by the
coastal State in the event of a serious threat of pollution
affecting its coastline or related interests, but arising
outside the territorial sea of that State. The text of that
article embodied the principles of the 1969 International
Convention relating to Intervention on the High Seas in
Cases of Oil Pollution Casualties and of the 1973 Protocol
extending that Convention to accidents in ships transport-
ing any harmful or dangerous substances. Those principles
were given greater prominence in the additional draft
articles, and, in the interests of protecting the marine
environment of coastal States, their right to intervene was
also recognized in cases of accidents connected with the
exploration and exploitation of sea-bed resources.

76. Mr. KATEKA (United Republic of Tanzania) observed
that the sponsors of both sets of draft articles had
submitted them to the Committee after serious negotiations
had already begun, thereby reopening the debate. His
delegation considered that the proposals should have been
submitted informally to the Working Group.

77. He had noted that in the draft articles submitted by
the Soviet Union (A/CONF.62/L.25), throughout the text,
wherever the rights of coastal States were referred to, the
word "may" was used, but that where their obligations
were referred to, the word "shall" was used, which gave the
impression that the rights were an optional matter. His
delegation considered that uniform terminology should be
used throughout the text.

78. Moreover, the Soviet text appeared to limit juris-
diction to the territorial sea. He did not think that would
provide a sound basis for negotiations.

79. Mr. THACHER (United Nations Environment Pro-
gramme), speaking at the invitation of the Chairman,
introduced the report on the Global Environmental
Monitoring System (GEMS) (A/CONF.62/C.3/L.23), which
had been prepared at the request of the Committee.

80. Monitoring, for UNEP, meant a system of continued
observation, measurement and evaluation. In the context of
GEMS, its objective was to provide the information
necessary to ensure, in conjunction with evaluation and

research, the protection of human health, well-being, safety
and liberty, and the wise management of the environment
and its resources. That objective was to be achieved by
increasing quantitative knowledge of natural and man-made
changes in the environment and of their impact on human
health and well-being; by increasing understanding of the
environment and, in particular, of how dynamic balance
was maintained in ecosystems, as a basis for managing
resources; by providing early warning of significant environ-
mental changes, including natural disasters, so that protec-
tive measures could be organized; and finally, by making it
possible to check the effectiveness of established regulatory
mechanisms and to plan optimal technological develop-
ment.

81. The legal basis for the System was principle 15 of the
general principles for assessment and control of marine
pollution adopted by the Intergovernmental Working
Group on Marine Pollution in 19714 in preparation for the
United Nations Conference on the Human Environment.
That principle required that every State should co-operate
with other States and with competent international organi-
zations with a view to the development of marine environ-
mental research and survey programmes, and of systems and
means for monitoring changes in the marine environment,
including studies of the state of the oceans, the trends of
pollution effects, and the exchange of data and scientific
information on the marine environment. It further required
that there should be similar co-operation in the exchange of
technological information on means of preventing marine
pollution, including pollution that might arise from
exploration and exploitation of off-shore resources.

82. That principle, together with a statement of objectives
on marine pollution, had been endorsed by the environ-
ment Conference as one of the guiding concepts for the
Conference on the Law of the Sea and had in turn received
the endorsement of the United Nations General Assembly.
The GEMS project had been established by the Governing
Council of UNEP at its first session, and had been the
subject of considerable international discussion, notably at
the Intergovernmental Meeting on Monitoring held at
Nairobi in February 1974, in which more than 50 Govern-
ments had participated. The system was thus founded on
the decisions of Governments over the previous four years.

83. The Global Environmental Monitoring System was
essentially international in character. Although the facilities
upon which it relied belonged to national Governments, it
was vital that monitoring efforts should be compatible and
convertible, methods intercalibrated, and data presented in
a standardized and readily usable form. The System was a
co-ordinated effort by Member States, United Nations
agencies and other organizations, and UNEP, to ensure that
information on critical environmental variables, such as
pollutant levels and the state of living resources, was
collected in an orderly and adequate manner, in order to
provide Governments with a quantitative picture of the
state of the environment and of natural and man-made
global and regional trends. Because of its regional and
global nature, the System's main concern would be with
programmes likely to lead to concerted action by several
countries, or with programmes that could yield results in
which more than one country would be involved. It would
also provide a framework within which Member States
could exchange information on the monitoring experience
they had gained at the local level, and thus ensure that their
data were comparable with those collected elsewhere for
the same projects.

4 Ibid.



20th meeting - 10 April 1975 89

84. Participation in the System was entirely voluntary.
However, Governments had agreed at the Intergovern-
mental Meeting on Monitoring that nations which had
agreed to participate incurred an obligation to exchange
promptly any appropriate data, especially in relation to the
early warning of natural disasters, or disasters occurring as a
result of human activities affecting regional or subregional
resources. In order to give the System more comprehensive
coverage, UNEP would welcome any proposals by States to
assume greater responsibility in that regard.

85. UNEP would continue to do its utmost to stimulate
and facilitate participation by Governments in environ-
mental monitoring programmes. The Environment Fund
was prepared to provide financial and other forms of
assistance either by giving aid directly or by mobilizing
resources elsewhere. Efforts would also be made to encour-
age the exchange of experience and expertise.

86. One of the essential tasks of the System was the
monitoring of the marine environment in the context of the
environment as a whole. As early as 1971, however,
Governments had recognized the need to rely largely on
regional efforts to attack the problem of marine pollution
in individual bodies of water, and the Action Plan being put
into operation in the Mediterranean was an example of such
an effort. The Programme was planning to take similar
initiatives with the Governments concerned in other areas,
such as the Red Sea, the Indian Ocean and the Caribbean.

87. Effective implementation of the Global Environmental
Monitoring System depended on the co-operation and
participation of Governments, and he hoped that any treaty
provisions that the Committee might ultimately recom-
mend would help to strengthen such co-operation.

The meeting rose at 1.40 p. m.


	Main Menu
	List of Documents
	How to use List of Documents

	Master File
	How to use Master File

	Other Materials
	I. Preface
	II. Document Symbols
	III. Full-text Search
	IV. Tables
	A. GA Resolutions
	B. Conference Sessions
	C. Documents by Session
	D. Contents by Volume
	E. Negotiating Texts
	F. Chronology - LOS



	Main: 


